Attachment A

Information provided by the Bruce Hartwig Flying School about the ‘credit’ arrangements offered
to students



PETERSON,Brett

From: : ) Lenad>

Sent: Tuesday, 14 April 2015 9;30 PM

To: Edueation - TQSS - Terliaty Study Enquiries

Subject: Re: Flying students enrolled in Seuth Australian Advanced Piploma
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Chris

Many thanks for your reply. The course in question expired in 2014, and the SA Government
agreed thatthe currently enfolled students could complete the course they were enrolled in, and
Skills SA subsequently extended the completion-dates te 23 June 2015. We therefore extended
all our students to 23 June 2015, as the final date te complete their course. This-gave them more
time to achieve the requirements and be awarded the Advanced Diploraa.

We have made it very clear te our 20 studerits that they are free to compléte their coutse by 23 -
June 2015. If they feel they are not able to complete the course within that time-frame, we are
‘helding discussions en an individual basis to receive internal *  Credits that they can only use
to further their flight training. For example, some students will still be.able to attairi their
Commercial Licence, IFR, or-multi-engine instrument ratings and have no gap to pay, as we waive
their contracted paymient obligations as part of our agreement with ther:

It is our enderstanding (based on advice) that because the studerits can complete the course if
they wish (and we are autherised to continue teaching the couirse until 23 June 2015), that there
‘are ne.negative implications for the studerits ér the school in regard to the. tuition assurance
implications under the Act. Each student will make their own decision re thelr course based on
thelr personal circumstances, and we will provide them with maximum support to-assist them
achiéve their flight training goals. We have thus far received only positive feedback from the
students, as they appreciate that and I are doing our best to assist them within the
Jegal ahd econonjic censtraints that we (ace:

On a lighter note, I am pleased to report that we have exceeded our 2015 forecast already for the
Diploma course. Enroliments in our Private Pilot Training course (precursor té the Diploma, and
self-funded) has been surprisingly strong. We are currently in Shanghai, having attended an:
Aviation Training Forum for the Chinese market. Interest has been strong from riainland Chiria,
Sirigapore and Vietnam. We are therefore optimistic about the scheol's prespects in both the
domestic and interhational markets:

Best regards.

--:--- Original Message -~
From: ¥ ——taa TACC . Torkjary Study Fraoii—1 -

Ta:

Sent: 14/04/2015 12:55:55 PM .
Subject: Flying students enrolled in South Australian Advanced Diploma [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

[ Hellr
l



As discussed in February, while the department does not offer business advice, the-approach to students-enrolled
in the old South Austrafian advanced diplema you have autlined below seems fair- -

After we spoke, it occurred to me that if the flying school does.not seek to have the course renewed, then itmay be
the case that your legal entitlement to deliver that course would thus cease.

Wauld it thus follow that even a student who has expressed an interest in continuing their enrolment in this course
may have to cease training, as the course they enrolled in was no lenger offered ?

f et et e a—— o

Have you considered the tuition assurance implications under thé Higher Education Support Act 2003 of “céasing to
offer” that advanced diploma course ?

Regards

(’//vriSjnmeS

Assistant Director

HELP Operations

Provider Assurance and-Systems.Branch
Commonwealth Department of Education and Training
5D Marcys Clarke. Street,

Canberra ACT 2601

Fromi: -
Sent:-Monday, 9 February 2015 5:07 PM

To: Education - TQSS - Tertiary Study Enquiries
Subject: Attention: MR CHRIS JAMES

Chris

As discussed, we have a problem to #esolve with respect to our Advanced Diploma Course
(15725SA). As you ate.aware, whén and I purchased the Bruce Hartwig. Flying
School in April 2014, there were 20 students enrolled in this State-approved course, which has
subsequently expired. We are not seeking to have the course renewed.

The previous owner established the Advanced Diploma as. a-one-semeSter course of 18 nonths
duration. All the student census dates occurred either in 2013 or 2014, and the VET monies
have been received. The course end dates are 2 March 15 and 25 May 15 for the two batches
of students whe enralled.

The issue we face is that there are a number of students who are clearly going to fail the
course, This is.due largely to:

« ‘Students net studying, full-timé and falling behind In their fiying.due to other commitments
- Some students struggling with the difficulty level of the course

Most students being unable to fund the gap ¢gst:of the VET funding and the course cost of
$114,900 that they signed up for.




I understard that the School can legally retain all of the VET funds and pursue the students for
unpaid gap funds owing in the eévent that the students fail the course, however neither !

: nor myself consider this to be a moral or ethical outcome for the effected students, We
have devised an alternative that your opinion is sought on. In short:

= The studefit voluntarily withdraws from the course

» We convert their remaining internally-calculated VET balance School C‘redits that can be
used for further flight trairing

. The-studénts are free to continue studying for their CASA licerises, énd to top-up the Credit
fuiding if need be, For example, we have one student who would have enough Creédits to
complete their instrument rating and CPL, but not their ATPL. This student would greatly
prefer to take this path than to fail the Advanced Diploma course and still owe the
$20,000 gap.

Fortunately, we track any "drawing down" of the VET funds on a student-by-student basis, using

our standard pricing. Altheugh it is a fixed-price course we internally invoice-the prepaid amount

for each student in eur balance sheet, so we can calculate a funds balance (whether received
from VET or other sources: such as the Skilis For All state subsidy, er prepayménts made in
cash). Itis this balance we are proposing te convert to Credits. We are also proposing to relieve
the students of the gap that they currently ewe if they choose to withdraw and take the School

Credit path.

I have attached an example draft of the agreement we weould be seeking to use should any of
aur Advanced Diplerna students wish to:avail themselves-of this option. We have not yet offered
this option to any student, as the-opinion of the Department is a deperidency béfore proceeding
with this concept. In considefing this concept, please be aware that our students are vastly
more interested in attainirig their licences eg. CPL, Instrument, ATPL, Type Rating efc. than
achieving a Diploma or similar qualification. That is why our preferred eption te: give them rellef
from the current situation Is to offer Credits. to apply to the specific training each individual needs
to attain their own flying career accreditation goals.

The other optien which may apply to a small number of students is for us to make: an early
repayment on the student's VET debt on their behalf. We would like an opinion from.the
Bepartment on the viability of that eption as well. .

T must stress that the above is.being contemplated for the Advanced Diploma 15725S5A
students only, which-is.a once-off issue. This-course has been closed since we tdok over the
business, and no enroliments.further will be taken.

I weuld appreciate a reply as.saon as possible,.as 8 March- 15is léss than a month away and we
would like to meet with each student and discuss their individual Circumstarices and options in
advance. of their course erid date.

Best regards

8ruce Hartwig Flying Schoof

Parafield Aitport| South Austrilia 15106



Office: +61 (0) 8 8258 4244

- www.hartwigair.com.au :
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Information provided by the Bruce Hartwig Flying School about course costs for

Attachment 8




‘PETERSON,Brett

From: e i e g e s
Sent: Monday, 20 July 2015 3:01 PM

To: YAMES Christopher

Subjeect:

Attachments: Advanced Diploma Cotirse Cost - Fanaffi.pdf
Hi Chris

As discussed, please find attached an explanation regarding }
as discussed.

Regards

B
. Bruce Hartwig Flying School

raedd™

i course cost,

Parafield Airport | South Australia 1 5106
Office: +61 (0) 8 8258 4244 1 Mobile: 3:61
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Itis intended solely for the altention and use of the named

The information in this.e-mail and sny.attachments is confidéntial and may be subject to legal professional privieg

addressee(s). I you are not the intended recipient, or person resporsibie for delivering this information to the intended recipient; please notiy the sender immediately. Unfess you
are the inténded reciplent or his/her representative you are prohibited from, and therefore must not, read, copy, distribute, use or retain this message or any part of it. The views

expressed inthis e-mail may not represent those: of Bruce Hartwig.Flying School,



~ 157255A Advanced Diploma of Aviation

Student: . _. gi

Course Cost Calculations

The former management of the Bruce Hartwig Flying School created a
curriculum-for-the delivery of 157255A Advanced Biplema-of Aviation (AD) at a
fixed course cost.of $114,900, consisting of one VET unit of study for the entire
VET course of study. The duration of the course is 18 months {to allow for
contingencies for poor weather, aircraft maintenance/ repairs etc).

i's ofiginal AD contrict ¢aleulatjons follow:

VET course of study cost ' S 93,204
ineligible for VET assistance cost S 21,696
Total course cost $ 114,900

Fanaafi passed her'VET census date on 24/3/2014.

In-accordance with the requirements of the Higher Education Support Act
2003, we publish our relevant policies {including our grievance procedure) on
our website;

http://hartwigair.com.au/vet-compliance/

Fanaafi.commenced the formal Scheol grievance process-en 9 July 2015
regarding the outstanding $14,482 course gap payment. This is currently being
reviewed via our formial quality management system. The “Ineligible for VET
Assistance Cost” of $21,696 is the cost of covering Non-VET eligible tra ining.

At the time, a State Skills For All {SFA} subsidy of up to $14,673 was available to
be applied to the Ineligible for VET Assistance-Cost if the student passed all-of

the-eligible SEA units.

it should be noted that SFA funding is contirigerit upon student progress
through the course. The student is-liable for the $21,696 but the School
agreed to credit the student with any SFA funding received against the
student’s. Ineligible for VET Assistange: Cost.



in ; case, SFA funding received by the School is $5,714.27 to date.
Therefore, . current closing position for her Remaining Student
Funding Gap is as follows:

Revised calculation at 19 June 2015

Course cost $ 114,900
Admin deposit S 1,500
VET funding S 93,204
Skilis For All received ] S 5,714
Remaining Student Funding Gap $ 14,482

Fanaafi did not progress sufficiently far through the Advanced Biploma as to be eligiblé for .

the full 514,673 SFA funding subsidy, and therefore must finance the original 521,696
Ineligible for VET Assistance Cost from other sources.



Attachment C

Course compliance information provided by the Bruce Hartwig Flying School




PETERSON,Brett

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Hi Chris

u>

Monday, 20 July 2015 2:53 PM

JAMES, Christopher

157258A Advanced Diploma of Aviation - compiiance report
BHFS Curriculum compliance report 010715.xls

Please find attached our VET compliance report for 15725SA Advanced Diploma of Aviation as

discussed.

Regards

, Bruce Hartwig Flying School

Parafield Airport | South Aust —*- ' =4»=
Office: +61 (0) 8 8258 4244 e,

www.hartwigair.corn.au
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The infocmation in this e-mail and any attachments is confidéntial and may be subject to-legal professional privilege. 1tis intended solely far the attention and use of the named
addressee(s). If you are not the intended recipient, or persan responsible for delivering this information to the intended recipiént, pléase notify the sender immediately. Uriless you
are the intended reciplent or hisfher representative. you aré prohibited from,.and therefofe must nat, read, copy, distribute, use-or retain this message or any part of &. The views

expiessed in this e-mall may not represéat those of Bruce Hartwig Flyieg School.



Scope of as listed at www.trainis

Qualifications (Accredited courses)
QualCode
157255A Advanced Diploma of Aviation

UnitCod

its of Comeptency (from Training Package)

Core ? VET Unit of Study Code

\VET FEE-HELP Tuition Fees

BSNK - Flight Planning 3

BSLY - Composite ATPL and Flight Planning 3

BSBA - Gas Turbines for Alrline Pilots

BSNL- Flight Rules and Procedures 3

BSNS - Human Resource Management Development

BSNE - Meteorology 3

BHFSVUoC1

BSNG - Navigation 3

BSNT - Heavy Alrcraft Operations

BSNH - High Speed Flight

BSNM - Advanced Alrcraft Systems

BSNP - Aviation Law

BSLP - Dangerous Goods

BSNN - Flight Deck Management

BSNW - Total Quality Assurance

BSLZ - Tutorial Support 5

BSNX - Command Instrument Rating

$93,204

Title
157255A Advanced Biploma of Aviation

Title

Flight Planning 3

Composite ATPL and Flight Planning 3
Gas Turbines for Alrline Pilots

Flight Rules and Procedures 3

Human Resource Management Development
Meteorology 3

Navigation 3

Heavy Alrcraft Operations

High Speed Flight

Advanced Alrcraft Systems

Aviation Law

Dangerous Goods

Flight Deck Management

Total Quality Assurance

Tutorlal Support 5

Command Rating

BSKR - Composite CPL and Flight Planning 1
BSKX - Composite PPL and Flight Planning 2
BSKY - Engines and Systems 1

BSKZ - Engines and Systems 2

BSLN - Introduction to Gas Turbines
BSMA - Flight Rules and Procedures 1
BSMS - Flight Rules and Procedures 2
BSMR - Human Performance and Limitations 1
BSMT - Human Performance and Limitations 2
BSMD - Meteorology 1

BSME - Meteorology 2

BSMF - Navigation 1

BSMG - Navigation 2

BSMH - Performance and Operations 1
BSMK - Performance and Operations 2
BSML- Principles of Flight 1

BSMM - Principles of Flight 2

BXFH - Decision Making

BPBD - First Aid

BSMB- Instruments 1

BSMC - Instruments 2

BSNY - Introduction to Pilot Studies

BADR - Mathematics and Physics

BSNZ - Tutorial Support 3

BRRZ - Airways Operating Procedures
BSBD - Aviation Business Operations

BEAA - Client Interaction

BSNA - Instructional Principles and Methods
BRRW - Morse Code

BEAF - Presenting Reports

BRRY - Radio Navigation Aids

BSLW - Tutorial Support 4

BSKT - Visual Flying at Night

BSLX - Workplace Relations

BSMX - General Flying Progress Test
BSMW - Pre-first Solo

BSMY - Private Pilot Licence

BSNB - PPL Consolidation

BSNE - Commercial Pilot Training

Electives

BEAC - Meetings

BELO - Speaking in Public

BELE - Writing Technical Documents
BELB - Writingin plain english

BSSB - Agricultural Aviation Operations
BEAD - Negotiational skills

BSBC - Pesticide safety

BSNB - Team Building communication
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TOTAL

including 2 of 8 electives

Composite CPL and Flight Planning 1
Composite PPL and Flight Planning 2
Engines and Systems 1

Englnes and Systems 2

Introduction to Gas Turbines

Flight Rules and Procedures 1

Flight Rules and Procedures 2
Human Performance and Limitations 1
Human Performance and Limitations 2
Meteorology 1

Meteorology 2

Navigation 1

Navigation 2

Performance and Operations 1
Performance and Operations 2
Principles of Flight 1

Principles of Flight 2

Decislon Making

First Ald

Instruments 1

Instruments 2

Introduction to Pilot Studies
Mathematics and Physics

Tutorial Support 3

Alnways Operating Procedures
Aviation Business Operations

Client Interaction

Instructional Principles and Methods
Morse Code

Presenting Reports

Radio Navigation Alds

Tutorial Support 4

Visual Flyng at Night

Workplace Relations

General Flylng Progress Test
Pre-first Solo

Private Pilot Licence

PPL Consolidation

Commercial Pilot Training

Meetings
Speaking In Public

Writing Technical Documents
Writing In plain english
Agricultural Aviation Operations
Negotiational skills

Pesticide safety

Team Bullding communication

Extent

Deliver and assess

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
Deliver and assess.
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
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WA TAS NT ACT

Core/ Elect

Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core
Core

Elective
Elective
Elective
Elective
Elective
Elective
Elective
Elective



Qualitications {Non-Acgredited courses/ CASA licence)
Private Pilot Licence

Commercial Pllot Licence

Single Engine Command Instrument Rating

Multi Engine Command Instrument Rating

Theory cours:
PPL (Private Pilot Licence Theory)

CPL {Commercial Filot Licence Theory}
IREX (Instrument Rating Theory)



Attachment D
(a) the timing and duration of study

(b) whether the student debt reported was consistent with the course fees pertaining
to the VET course of study the student had enrolled in



PETERSON,Brett

From: Education - HEIMS Data Collections

Sent: Thursday, 24 September 2015 3:28 PM

To: WQQD,Paul ]

Subject: RE: 0000 - #40755 - Paul Wood - VET FEE-HELP Debis for four students who enrolled
Bruce Hartwig Flying School [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: 0000_40755_Paul Wood_VFH Debts atBruce Hariwig_4 Students.xIsx

Follow UpFlag: —Follow up

Flag Status: Conpleted

Hi Paul

THE detafls of the reparted data for the students you queried are as follows;

This student has.been reported by-Bruce Hartwig Flying School and Aerocentre as enrolled in an-Advanced Diploma
of Aviation (2014} and has incurred a total HELP debt of $93,204.00; this data has not been revised, The ATO applies

indexation to any outstanding debt ot an-annual basis.

Name:

This student has been reported by:

RMIT University as enrolled in Dip.Air Trans {Airline.Pilot) (2011)
Bruce Hartwig Flying School and Aeroceritre as enrolléd in an Advanced-Diplomi of Aviation (2014}

They have incutred a total HELP debt of 594,433:01; thiis data‘has not been revised. The ATO applies indexation to
any outstanding debt on an annual basis.

Name

This studerit has baen reported by Bruce Hartwig Flying School-and Aéracentre as entolled i an Advanced Diplomia
of Aviation (2014} @nd has incurred a total HELP debt of $93,204.00; this data has not been revised. The ATO applies

indéxation te any-outstanding debt on an annual basis.

Namég

This student has been reported by-Bruce Hartwig Flying.School and Aerocentre as envolled in an Advanced Diplora
of Aviation (2014)-and has incyrred a total HELP debt of $93,204.00; this data has net been revised. The ATO applies

indexation to any-outstahding debt on an annual basis.

The reported-details for each of these students are in'the attached spreadsheet.



From: WOOD,Paul
Sent: Thursday, 24 September 2015 12:26 PM

Fo-Education=HEIMS Patz Cotfections

Subject: RE: 0000 - #40755 - Paul Wood - VET FEE-HELP Debts for four students whe enralled Bruce Hartwig Flying
Schoot [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Importance: High

HiTeam

Can you please confirm the VET FEE-HECP lean debts for the following faur students who enrolled at Bruce Hartwig
- —————Flying School Pty-Ltd-in 2013 and 2014: - S

Thanks

Paul Wood

Assistant Director

Payments, Data and Provider Management {A-H)
VET FEE-HELP Branch

Skills Programmes'Group

Australian Gevernment Department of Education and Training

Opportunity through learning

www.education.gov.du
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Provider CHESSN Date Students Students CHESSN

CHESSN Famity Given Issued By
Created
6520449624 18/11/2013

Bruce Hartwig Flying School and Aerocentre

Master Student  Family BirthDate  Year Course  E308 Course name " CoS E330-Typeof E329-Mode UoSCode Census  EFTSL Charged  PaidUp  Debt  toan  Completion’

CHESSN Number Name Code Commence attendance of attendance Date Amount Front Amount fee status

Date ) _ - . L

1/11/2013  Fiill time Internal/Extern: 157255A 20140210 1 $114,900.00 $21,696.00 $93,204.00 $0.00
Total reported debt including loan fee $93,204.00

7360 Bruce Hartwig Flying School.and Aerocentre 46 2014 157255A ) dvanced Diploma of Aviation




Provider name

Briice Hartwig Flying School and Aerocentre

3034 RMIT University
3034 RMIT University
3034 RMIT University
3034  RMIT University
3034 RMIT University
3034  RMIT University
3034 RMIT University
3034 RMIT.University

Course  £308 Course name CoS E330- E329 - Mode of UoS Code Census  EFTSL Charged Paid Up Debt Loan Fee Completion
Code Commenc Typeof attendance Date Amount Front Amount status
eDate attendanc

e .
157255A Advanced Diploma of ‘Aviation 1/09/2013 Full'time Internal/External  AVD 20131118 01 $114,900.00 $27,840.00 $87,059,04 $0.00 Incomplete
1286§V|C Dip Air Trans (Airline Pilot) 1/02/2011 Parttime Internal 23783 20110331 0.04 $1,536.24 $0.00 $1,536.24 $307.25 Withdrew
12868VIC Dip Air. Trans {Airtine Pilot) 1/02/2011 Parttime Internal 23784 20110331 0.015 $576.09 $0.00 $576.09 $115.22  Withdrew
12868VIC Dip Air Trans (Airline Pilot) 1/02/2011 Parttime Internal 23785 20110331 0.04 $1,536.24 $0.00 $1,536.24 $307.25 Withdrew
12868VIC Dip Air Trans (Airline Pilot) 1/02/3011 Parttime Internal 23786 20110331 0.005 $192.03  $0.00 $192.03 $38.41  Withdrew
12868VIC Dip Air Trans (Airline Pilot) 1/02/2011 Parttime Internal 23787 20110331 0.03 $1,152.18  $0.00 $1,152.18 $230.44 Withdrew
12868VIC Dip Air Trans (Aifline Pilot) 1/02/2011 Parttime Internal 23788 20110331 0.005 $19203  $0.00 $192.03 $3841  Withdrew
12868VIC Dip Air Trans (Airline Piiot} 1/02/2011 Parttime Internal 23789 20110331 0.005 $192.03 $0.00 $192,03 $38.41  Withdrew
12868VIC Dip Air Trans (Airline Pilot) 1/02/2011 Part time Internal 23790 20110331 0.02 $768.12 $0.00 $768.12 $153.62 Withdrew

Total reported debt including loan fee

$94,433.01



£308 Course name CoS E330-  E328-Modeof  UoSCode Census  EFTSL Charged PaidUp  Debt Loan Fee Completion
Date Amount Front Amount status

Given Birth Date  Year Course
Commenc Typeof attendance

Provider Providername Master Student Family
CHESSN Number Name Name Code
e Date attendanc

code
. - ) e
43 2014 15725SA Advanced:Diploma of Aviation 1/12/2013 Fulitime Internal/External

Incomplete

$114,900.00 521,696.00 _$93,204.00 $0.00 _
$93,204.00

15725SA 20140224 1
Total reported debt including loan fee

7360 Bruce Hartwig Flying School and Aerocentre




Date CHESSN Students Family  Students CHESSN
Created Name Given Issued By
Name

6598521093 27/12/2013 Sooaemalelgi Fanaafi  Karen Duke

Provider Provider CHESSN

Code

7360 Bruce Hartwig Flying School and Aerocentre
UoSCode Census EFTSL Charged  PaidUp  Debt  LoanFee Completion

Student  Family Name BirthDate  Year Course E308 Course name ) ~ Cos £330 - Type E329 - Mode of
Front Amount status

Code Commenc of attendance Date Amount
e Date attendance

Provider Providername Master
code CHESSN Number

Internal/External _ 1S725SA 20140324 1 $114,500.00_$21,696.00 $93;204.00. $0.00
Total reported debt including loan fee $93,204.00

2014 157255A Advanced Diploma of Aviation 1/12/2013 Fulltime

Bruce Hartwig Flying School and:Aerocentic. .

7360




Attachment E

Email t¢ 2 note and advice to (then) Minister Hartsuyker




PETERSON,Brett

Education - TQSS - Tertiary Study Enquiries <TSEnquiries@educafion.gov.au>

From:

Sent: Tuesdav. 30 June 2015 6:08 PM

To:

Subject: Your Query to the National Training Complaints Hotline [DLM=Sensitive:Personal]
Sensitive: Personal

Hell, -

Thank you for summarising your difficulties with the former Advanced Diploma of Aviation course asdelivered-by
Bruce Hartwig Flying Scheal.

As discussed on the phone last week, as you did not eléct to withdraw from the VET caurse-of study you enrolled in,

-on or by the published census.date; the only remédy relevant

to yeur circumstances is the official “refund and remittance procedure” provided under the Higher Education
Support Act 2003 is which | advised you to examine some months ago: .

I recently checked with the schodl te seeif you had ever applied for a refund under this.prevision of the Act; they
indicated (and you subsequently confirmed) that you have not.

If you now do elect ta-follew the refund and remittancé procedtire published onthe website of the schoel, you may

subsequently be able to lodge an appeal with the Australian
Administrative Appeals Tribunal (AAT) forthe purposes of ebtaining anm order that would cance! all or some of your

VET FEE-HELP debt.

As previously advised, underthe Act, the school has seemingly metthe requiréments to beé paid.in Tespect of the

"VET course:of study; yet was prepared to offer a valuable concession
to effected stiderits — apparently out of good will— in recognition that thé farmef owners may have made decisions

which,.even if legally sound, coyld be seen as being contrary to the
interests.of some of the students that they allowed te &nral in the obsolescent SA qualification. { cannot offerany

advice-on whether.or not their gffer was in your interests to accept.

As a Commonwealth officer, | also cannot offer ary advice orithe terms or the method-6f operation of the Séuth
Australian g_oﬁvernment’s former “Skills For All” programme.

If you.are.concerned with the schoel’s.standards of teaching, you weuld need to bring your concerns to the
attention of ASQA and/orthe Civil Aviation.Safety Authority (CASA).

1 wish you well-in your future studies,
Regards

Chris James

Assistant Director

HELP Gperations

VET FEE-HELP Branch

Commonweéalth Department of Education and Training
SO Marcus Clarke Strése,.

Canberra ACT 2601



From: Education - National Training Complaints

Sent: Tuesday, 30 June 2015 11:55 AM

To: Education - TQSS - Tertiary Study Enquiries

-Subject: 34881 - National Training Complaints Hotline - réferred complaint - Sooaemalelagi
[DLM=Sensitive:Personal]

Sensitive: Personal

Dear VET FEE-HELP team

We have received the compiaint listed'below through the Natidrial Trainiing Complaints Hotline-for your

consideration.

We will advise the complainant their complaint has been forwarded to your area. We will also advise them to

centact tsenguiries@education.gov.au if they have any follow-up queries.

Noted below are the-details of the complainant and their issue.

National Training Complaints Hotline — complaint

summary

Education.gav.au

1D:

150617-001445

Date of complaint: |

17 june 2015

Complainant
details:

'.l't'ztephpn;;/-ﬁ};biie number; }
" Email Address:

Preferred method of con'_(a_ct;.Phone
State/Territory: SA
Post Code; :

| RTO complained about: Bruce Hartwig Flying School; Code: 4439

| Complaint regarding VET FEE-HELP debt refund.

Eomplainants RTO was taken over by new people and ever since students
learning and training has suffered,

The RTO is providing complainant with.conflicting information about how
much she is to pay them.after VET FEE-HELP-and Skills for AWl have been

| taken-into account.
Complaint details: -

Complainant advised the RTO is now pressuring her into elther signing a
contract or having a $17,400.gap to be paid. Complainant is not allewed ta
access anything at the school,.and has been stopped from c¢entinuing the
course until the centract has'been signed. Gomplainantwants to seek legal
advice an-the contract but the RTO is not allowing her time to do this:

Further, she was only given 4 weeks’ notice that the course was finishing

and found that she was 4 manths behind on study with no prior. notification.

She is unsure how her training is going and feels she is being backed into a

2




corner with no eptions.

Complainarit would like her VET FEE-HELP debt removed so it can be put
towards the new RTO she is enrolling in.

The caller does-not permit disclosure of their personal details to the

Additional: h
ttional | organisation that is subject of the complaint

Further | Full detsils regarding the complaint are cutlined in the email below.

information

Régards

National Training Complaints
Department of Education and Training
Phone: 1338 73

Text of full corplaint

Date and Time Call Recéived: 17/06/2015 03:54 PM
incident: 150617-001445

Privacy and confidentiality: )
Did caller-understand and agree to.the.privacy policy and disclosure of their perSonal information? Yes
If no:

Did they choose to make an ‘anonymous complaint?

Did the.call end at this péint?

Authority to-make the complaint;

Was the-caller calling on behalf of someorie eise? No
Ifyes:

Whal was their relationship?

What isthe hame of the affected individual?

Was verification of-consent needed?

Was verification provided?

DBid the call end at this-point?

Verfication Refetence Number:

Previous attempts to resolve.complaint:

Has caller previously attempted torresolve (he comiplaint-with their training provider/femployer/broker/relevant organisalion? Yes
If yes:

Date thé complaint was made 24/02/2015

Name of the person who deail with' the corpiaint.
Date of response from the training provnderiemployerlbmker/rdevan( "organisation (if known): 24/0212015

What:did they-dfferte do? They were going to-fast track.and help her through her course.
Has the training provnderlemployer/brokerlrelevahl organisation informed the complainant that it now considers Itie matter closed?
No

ifno:
Reason for not'attempting o resolve the comiplaint wilh theirtraining-provider/employer/broker/relevant organisation

Did [Fié caller elect 1o follow-up the complaint first using the complaints mechanism-of-the [training providet/training
broker/employer/releyant. organisation}?
Did the call end at this paint?

Has the caller taken the complaint-to-anolher agency-or organisation? Yes

If yes:

Date the complaint was made: 03/06/2015

Name of the ageney or.organisation who-dealt with-the-complaint: Australian Skills Quality Aulhodty
Date of response from the agency or organisation: 03/06/2015

Whatditi-they offer to-da? Fill.out the complaints form and | they will contact her back

Has the-agency or organisalion inforied the_complainant that it now considers the-matter closed? No

Caller's details

Name:

Address Line:

Town/Suburb: ;



State/Tercitory: SA

Post Code:

Date of Birth:

Telephone/Mobile number:

Efnail Address: L
Preferred méthad of conlact? Phone .
How did you find out abaut the National Training Coriplaints Hotline? Word of mouth .
Does the caller permil disclosure of their personal details to-the organisation'thatis the-subject of the compiaint? No
Is the caller using the Nalionat Relay Service? No )

{,s the caller using the Translaling and Interpreting Service (T18)? Ko

fyes: _

What is the caller's spoken language?

‘Complaint details:

‘Does your complaint relate to & particular course or qualification? Yes
If yes: .

Course/qualification code; 157255A

Ceurse/qualificalion-name; Advanced Diploma of Aviation

Dellvery venue/site: Parafield Airport

Name of RTO: Bruce Hartwig Flying School .

When.did the course commence? 25/11/2013

Is the complaint about a specific trainer? No
Ifyes:
Name of Trainer;

Is the complaint about a specific Registered Training Organisation (RTO)/Breker/Employeér/Organisation: Yé$
I yes: - o
Name of Registered Training Organisation (RTO)/Brokef/Employer/Organisalian; Bruce-Hartwig flying schoo|

Are you an Employee of a Registered Training Organisalion (RTO)? No
1Eyes:

RTO code (on lraining.gov.au): ! .

Location of RTO/Broker/Employer/Grganisaiion:

Are youan-apprentice/icainee? No
IFyes:
What is the namé of the employer?”

Are you an international student? No

If yes: ) )
Is-the comgilaint about-a problem with a privateregistered education provider relating to an overseas-student?

{s the complaint about VET FEE-HELP? Yes
Have you given your tax file-number (o a-\raining broker/provider? Yes

Delails of complaint: »  * ymplaining about the.Bruce Hartwia. Flying School, The school was taken.over'by new: pédple and
since then students-ha.~ o with their ledming and training. elieves the delivery-of the course and'the furiding for
the course is not executed very wéll. She is having misunderstangings:v... School and the amount money she has !(?Id thatis
funded'by VET FEE-HELP ahd Skills.For All and What her gap is. $96;000-from VET FEE-HELP and S:14.6_7:{§kilk-?orﬁl. Ihgl Jeft
her with:a gap of $2,727 that she-has o pay. Bean told:by the registered raining orgdnisation ilhat_shg has rufroul of moriey. The
schiaol has told herithal they have only received-$5.714.27 Skills For All leaving hér with a $17,400 gap. Then they (fiat lfey
received the right &mount, The schoo! keeps givi " Terent amounts of she owes and-is nol consistent with the actual
amount from skills or herself.is owed. The Schoo! s turue.,, -sign the contract or she-will have a $1f{,400 gap that she will
have'to.pay out of her own.maney. The school is nét allowing -acaac o-gccess anything from the schoof unlil she signs the
“mt=*~qreed by the-school and F She has been stopped 1rom continuing the-course unless-she signs the cortract but

inis-legal advice for the conirac and thiey are not aliowing her time-to dothat. The‘dnswssnons“bel\n_leen s.lydent‘a'nd .
school is pot consistent. The fifarmation she has been recsiving-is very inconsistent with the course and previous c!sgcus»ons They
only gave her4 weeks advance nolice on when the course was finishing and she was 4 npplh;bede qr_\knpw_;pgly- and:was not
given advice-previously if she was falling.behind her study. She is Unaware. of how her tram_mg is going. She is very unsure of_wh__al
the amourit she is-getting from Skills For All. Overal: -~ feefs like she is being.backed into a corner and may fave no.optionto
pay whan she féels.she shouidn't have to.

What resolution does the callerwant? The $96,000-t0 be returned to VET FEE-HELP and puttowards her new flying school:she is
enrelling in.




PETERSON,Brett

From: JAMES, Christepher
Sent: Monday, 12 Qctober 2015 2:00 PM
To: ‘WOODALL,Kate
Cc; BARTLETT,Michael ]
Subject: Bruce Hartwig Flying School issues [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]}
Attachmernts: Complaint about Bruee Hartwig Flying Schoal.docx
—_Hellokate

As requested, attached pledse find rélevant material for inclusion in a draft response to the query on BHFS, received

Jate last week.

1 have confirmed with Maple Ko that no AAT applications in respect of BHFS have been lodged asyet.

Regards

Chris James

Assistant Director

Payments, Data & Provider Management
VET FEE-HELP.Branch

Lévsl 6, SO Marcus Clarke Street, Cinbera-AGT 2601
Ph:

Emait: £ o . u

Sectio XLva eicnda £t



Complaints against the Briice Hartwig Flying School

Background

The Bruce Hartwig Flying Schoel {BHFS) is approved by the Civil Aviation Safety Authority (CASA) to
deliver flight training courses ieading to the award of the Commercial Pilot License {CPL) and the
Multi-Engine Command Instrurient Rating (ME/CIR). These. are the two qualifications CASA, and

hence_the_airlines, require_every pilot_to have befere they may be employed as the pilot of a

passenger carrying aircraft.

While only a CASA approved flying school can train pilets, if the flying school wishes to offer its
students financial assistance under the VET FEFSHELP scheme of the Commonwealth it must first

also be appraved :

()  asaregistered training organisation by the Australian Skills Quality Authority-(ASQA); and
{ii) -as a'VET provider under the Higher Education Suppert Act 2003 (HESA].

As the cost of becoming a commercial pilot in Alstralia currently ranges from $86,000 to $120,000
nearly all trainee pilots need to obtain financial assistance to .complete their studies. BHFS therefore
applied for and obtained ASQA registration as a training 6rganisation and HESA approval to offer VET
FEE-HELP loans for'its Diploma and Advanced Diplpmé level vocational courses.

Unique Gircumstances of BHFS

All flying schoals approved as VET providers, inciuding BHFS, deliver the ASQA accredited Dipioma of
Aviation (AVI50408)-which includes the ME/GIR curriculum but excludes most of the CPL curriculum.

Itis important to note that, because ASQA currently classifies the CPLasa Gertificate IV qualification,
and HESA does not cover Certificate IV level courses, there is normally no VET EEE-HELP assistance
available either for the delivery of CPL training or for the associated CASA pilot examination.

Yet until June this yéar, BHFS. had South Australian Government approval to award existing studerits
an obsolescent SA Government accredited Advanced Diploma of Aviation (15725SA). Uniike
AVI50408 this obsolescent gualification did include the ¢omplete CPL cyrriculum. As an ‘Advanced
Diploma’ course, 15725SA attracted VET FEE-HELP assistance for both the:CPL-and for the ME/CIR..

Whiile this obsolescent course expired in 2014, the SA Governmerit extended the complétion date
for existing. BHFS studénts te June 2015, after which no furttier 157255A qualifications could be

awarded.

Tha effected BHES students were aware, or stiould have been aware, that if they had not completed
their training by the cut-off date, set by the SA Govériment, they could net be awarded the 157255A

s

qualification.

The Complaint Received

In May 2015; . ... contacted the Department by email to discuss some issues his
daughter, * was having with BHFS and her dissatisfaction with the slow .
progress of the 157255A course she had enrolféd in. She:was particularly concerned about the very
large VET FEE-HELP debi-she had by then ificurred (without her having obtained a qualification)-and
the advice from BHFS that:she was ineligible, under the VET Guidelines.2813 to dbtain any refund.



- 1 explained that the 157255A course his daughter enrciled in had a single census date (for

the entire VET rmﬁummwwmnmpw&mmm up-to that

point, his daughter had no reasoen to consider withdrawing from the course on or by the census date.

AILVET FEE-HELP providers are required to have in place policies and procedures to allow studentsto
apply for remittance of FEE-HELP debts and to have complaints heard. The information published on
the website of BHFS about the consequerices of not withdrawing by the (single) census date was
confirmed as correct tc by the Department and she was encouraged ta follow
this BHFS refund-and-remittance procedure. S - .

When the Department queried BHFS about F . eancérns, BHFS indicated that she
had received an unusually fiigh number of fnstructional hours, at considerable cost to BHES, in the
aireraft-without achieving satisfactory progress.

Despite information on how to seek a refund and debt remission under-HESA. being provided to her
by the Department, repéatedly,. ... falled to follow the published refund and
rémittance procedure for many months. When -4 finally did complete the
réquired refund and remission procedures, BHES's decision was to refuse 4 refund or-remission of
debt, on the basis that the census date had passed before she attempted to withdraw froin the VET
course-of study.

The Department has also been contacted by severalof ... ..___..__  classmates who were
similarly dissatisfied with BHFS;.ahd were given the same advice; ie. to apply for a refund and debt
remission under the procedures published on the BHES website.

- contends that the réason his daughter did not obtain her CPL or ME/CIR qualification was
cnat BEES delivered slow, ineffective training. As traifing quality is a matter for ASQA and, in.the
case of flight training, for CASA, the Department indicated t n that he may wish to rajse his
congerns with them.

v subsequently indicated that he has been in contact with CASA, with ASQA and with the
South Australian Office of the Training Advocate on this matter, but has not obtdined the action ke
seeks.

While a copy of an email tc _ from - "% 7 ; where she
subsequently enrolled to complete her trainitig, doés séem to lend suppert to -. s view- it
shows that she obtained her CPL after just 23.5 hours of further instruction at FTA and is progressing,
well toward her goal of obtaining her ME/CIR) this falls outside the jurisdiction-of the Department.

Current Situation
On 23 September 2015, ai-email to the Department from ... _. .1 indicated that he had sought

assistance frem “Senator Nick Xenophon and the Minister for Education” to progress his daughter's

case to resolution:

Under the Higher Education Support Act 2003 the final héarifg 6f a student’s unsuccessful
application to ‘Have .a FEE-HELP debt remiitted i§ the: -Administrative Appeals: Tribunal. Wh|le itis
ariticipated that up to four BHFS students will make applications té AAT in coming weeks to have
their $94,800-FEE-HELP debts remitted; no-such application has in fact been lodged to-date.
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Reply Level Minister Harvtsuyker t’\ ;
Subject Government removal of VET FEE<HELP limit
Swmmary of Issues
On 29 Septeraber 2013, - - wrate to the Prime Minister,
the Hon. Malcolm Turabul{ MP. eoncerning the idea of removing the curtent $97,728
VET FEE-HELP loan limit, *s email was referred (o you as the issue raised falls

within yeur pertfolio responsibilities.

As pilot training is very expensive, most eligible studenis rely on the VET FEE-HELP student
loan scheme to meet their tuition costs. Many students atlempting to beconie conunercial pilots
use up:nearly their entire VET FEE-HELP loan limit without eamning the qualifications
required.

The Australian Govﬂ nment has recently amended the Higher Education Support Act 2003
(FIESA) in ordér to rein ir casts. To» remove.the limit on YET FEE-HELP 1oans as

is proposing would, at this time, be incensistent with. tlie Government’s poliey diredtion and
public expectations.

Background

A number of s tellow students al the Bruce Hartwig Flying School have written to
Senator the Hon, Simon Bivmingham, Minister for Education and Training, (MC15-004529);
to the Depactment of Education and Trainirig, and to the Australian Skills Quahty Authority to
express their disappointment at having incurred very large VET FEE-HELP debts, without
having achieved-the qualifications required by the Civil Aviation Safely Authority (CASA) to

be-emplayed as a conimercial pilot.

When these claims wete investigated, the Bruce Hartwig Flying School was.found 1ot to have
breactied either the National Vocational Education dnd Training Regulator Act 2011 or HESA.
The Australian Administrative Appeals Tribunal bas presented no adverse findings against the

scheol.

Mauny people are attracted to the idea of becoming an airline pilot. As the VET FEE-HELP
scheme bas reimoved the former financial barriers'to their accessing flight training,
the pmportlon of unsuitable students accepted by flying schools, as in other ficlds of édueation,

may be risibg.

., Consultation,

The Bruce Hartwig Flying School graduated Jess than five pilots assisted by VET FEE-HELP
in 2014 (the latest peried for which full vear data has beeh published). The school was
therefore asked why so few: of the student pilots, enrolled in the obsolescent Advanced
Diploma of Aviation, achieved the qualifications CASA require every comruereial pilet to
obtain.

The school™s response te this question was that the former ewners of the business made little
effort to-assess the aptitude of thosc seeking to enrol, and that some of themn sheuld never have
‘been accepted. The school decided to keep trying to trdin them as, having already passed the
single census date for VET FEE-MELP, no refund was due to them under the HESA tules in

force at that fime.
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